
St Ignace Zoom is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

 

Topic: City Council Meeting 

Time: Oct 4, 2021 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5886184757 

 

Meeting ID: 588 618 4757 

One tap mobile 

+13126266799,,5886184757# US (Chicago) 

+16465588656,,5886184757# US (New York) 

 

Dial by your location 

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 

        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

Meeting ID: 588 618 4757 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kkhDLpL2u 



 

           
 

    CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

Monday, October 04, 2021 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Council Chambers/Virtual Hybrid Attendance Meeting 

 
****A G E N D A**** 

 
1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance 
3) Invocation 
4) Roll Call 
5) Additions to Agenda 
6) Public Comment (3-minute limit) 
7) Consideration of Minutes of September 20, 2021 
8) Old Business 
 

A. Sale of City Property via Realtor—Proposals  
 

9) New Business 
 

A. SAFA Board Requests 
B. Tank Inspections Proposal  
C. Proclamation—Brian Peterson Retirement 
D. Mayor’s Letter—Scott Marshall 
E. Reschedule November 15th Council Meeting  

 
 

10) Consideration of Bills  
11) Public Comment (3-minute limit) 
12)  City Manager’s Report 

a. Budget Draft 
13)  Committee Reports 
14) Council Member Comments                                                                                                                                                                                     

 
 
 
 

City of St. Ignace is an equal opportunity employer and provider  
TDD (800) 649-3777 



City of St. Ignace 
Council Proceedings 

(Unofficial) 
 
A Regular Meeting of the St. Ignace City Council was held on Monday, September 20, 2021, in 
the City Hall Council Chambers as a hybrid attendance meeting, with Zoom video conference 
available. 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Litzner, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  Councilmember Clapperton gave the invocation.                                         
 
PRESENT FROM CITY COUNCIL:  Councilmembers Clapperton, Fullerton, LaLonde, Mayor 
Litzner, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Tremble. 
 
ABSENT:  None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Darcy Long, City Manager; Charles Palmer, City Attorney; Andrea Insley, 
City Clerk/Treasurer; Stephanie Baar, Assistant to the City Manager; Tony Brown, Police Chief. 
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA – None. 
 
LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT  
Public comment was received regarding the proposed Personnel Policy Handbook and the City 
contribution to EUPConnect. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING: 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember LaLonde, to approve the 
minutes from September 8, 2021, as presented. 
 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmembers Fullerton, LaLonde, Mayor Litzner, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem 
         St. Louis, Councilmembers Tremble and Clapperton. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
A.  FIRE TRUCK LEASE 
 
The City of Mackinac Island has offered the City of St. Ignace a 1990 Spartan Ladder/Fire Truck 
for a leased term of 10 years, paying $1.00 annually. 
It was moved by Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, seconded by Councilmember LaLonde, to approve the 
lease agreement for the ladder truck. 
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Councilmember LaLonde, Mayor Litzner, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, 
         Councilmembers Tremble, Clapperton and Fullerton. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
B.  RESOLUTION EUP CONNECT COLLABORATIVE 
 

EUP Connect Collaborative-Resolution to Partner 

 
The following resolution was offered for adoption by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by 



Councilmember Fullerton: 
 
WE AGREE THAT WE NEED EQUITABLE AFFORDABLE CONNECTIVITY FOR ALL CITIZENS 
IN THE Eastern Upper Peninsula. The EUPConnect Collaborative will be one regional source for 
all stakeholders to receive and share information saving valuable time, resources, and energy for 
all partners as we move forward with the EUP broadband build-out and connect all EUP citizens 
equitably. 

 
We acknowledge that recent investments by private sector partners to secure access to 

high-speed internet has improved service for some, yet others remain without adequate access. 

 
Whereas reliable and affordable internet is a prerequisite for sustainable economic growth, 

efficient delivery of healthcare, banking, local government, and education services; 

 
Whereas current service across the EUP is often unavailable, unreliable, or inadequate; 

 
Whereas the Federal Communications Commission’s Rural Digital Opportunity Fund (FCC 

RDOF) is injecting $37 million into the EUP, a community of partners will need to leverage this 

collective investment to optimize organizational structures to maximize our collective power in 

our region. This investment will be the EUPConnect Collaborative. 

 
Whereas local communities are receiving federal American Rescue Plan funds. Building a 

community of partnerships with leveraged resources will create one resource for information as 

we ensure that communities can both afford and have the know-how to connect securely. 

 
Therefore, as elected officials, nonprofit organization leaders, healthcare leaders, K12 and 

higher education leaders, and economic development and business leaders all serving the 

community, we agree that we need to take the lead to leverage the collective investment of all 

our partners. 

 
Therefore, the Eastern Upper Peninsula Intermediate School District has developed 

the EUPConnect Collaborative and will serve as its fiscal agent. 

 
Therefore, we agree to work together to create an optimal organizational structure to maximize 

our collective power. 

 
Therefore, to ensure that our communities remain vibrant and vital, it is imperative that this 

fiber-optic network development be completed as soon as possible, and that community 

members have resources available to both afford and have the know-how to connect by 

leveraging targeted investments from individual partners now, 

 
Be it resolved that the City of St. Ignace, County of Mackinac, Michigan will act in support of 

EUPConnect Collaborative with the primary objective to manage the coordination of work and 

resources for all working toward equitable affordable connectivity for all citizens in the EUP.   

Furthermore, be it resolved that the City of St. Ignace, County of Mackinac, Michigan will 

provide $7,294 of direct support to the EUPConnect Collaborative. 

Furthermore, be it resolved that the City of St. Ignace, County of Mackinac, Michigan will   

provide contractors of EUPConnect Collaborative with the easements needed to expand 

existing fiber networks. 



 

Furthermore, be it resolved that the City of St. Ignace, County of Mackinac, Michigan will work with 

EUPConnect Collaborative to apply for grants to expand existing fiber networks. 

I hereby certify that this resolution was passed by the City of St. Ignace City Council at a regular 

monthly meeting held on September 20, 2021. 

Roll Call Vote 

Ayes:  Mayor Litzner, Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers  

         Tremble, Clapperton and Fullerton. 
Nays:  Councilmember LaLonde. 

 
Absent:  None. 
 
Resolution declared Adopted. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A.  FALL FEST & PUMPKIN ROLL RESOLUTION 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

The following Resolution was offered for adoption by Councilmember Pelter, supported by 
Councilmember Clapperton: 
 

WHEREAS, the St. Ignace Chamber of Commerce requests permission to conduct the Fall 
Festival & Great Pumpkin Roll; and 
 

WHEREAS, event requires the usage of Goudreau, Ellsworth and Marquette Streets and the 
Little Bear East Community Center parking lots; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 413 of the City of St. Ignace, “The Peddler’s Ordinance”, requires 
certain criteria be met in order for the event to be held. 

 
WHEREAS, this event will be required to follow all COVID Federal, State and Local regulations 

in place at that time to qualify for Special Event status; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the St. Ignace City Council does approve the St. 
Ignace Chamber of Commerce to be a “Special Events Organization” and has determined that the St. 
Ignace Chamber of Commerce does meet the criteria established in the various sections of the 
Ordinance No. 413; and 
 

FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council does approve the usage of Goudreau, 
Ellsworth and Marquette Streets and Little Bear East Community Center parking lots for this event; and 
grants St. Ignace Chamber of Commerce the authority to control vending approved by the City during 
the event.  

 
Saturday, October 2, 2021 1 p.m. – 5 p.m. 

 
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council approves the closure of Goudreau Street, 

from Ellsworth to North State Street on Saturday, October 2, 2021, from 3:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.  



 

Roll Call Vote 
 
Yes:  Councilmember Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Tremble, Clapperton,  
         Fullerton, LaLonde and Mayor Litzner. 
No:   None. 
Absent: None. 
 
Resolution declared Adopted. 
 
B.  ORANGE SHIRT DAY SEPTEMBER 30TH 
 
Mayor Litzner introduced Bridgett Sorenson, with the Sault Tribe of Chippewa Indians, to request 
Council’s support for Orange Shirt Day on September 30th.  Orange Shirt Day is observed annually and 
remembers those Native American children that were once taken from their families and placed in 
Indian Boarding Schools during a time when some did not survive. 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember Fullerton, to approve recognizing 
September 30th as Orange Day.  
Roll Call Vote 
Yes:  Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Tremble, Clapperton, Fullerton, LaLonde, Mayor 
         Litzner and Councilmember Pelter. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
C.  RESOLUTION ADOPTION OF EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL POLICY HANDBOOK 
 
After some short discussion, it was moved by Mayor Litzner, seconded by Councilmember Fullerton, to 
postpone consideration of this resolution until further details can be resolved. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Councilmembers Tremble, Clapperton, Fullerton, LaLonde, Mayor Litzner, Councilmember 
         Pelter and Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
D.  FINANCIALS 
 
City Manager Long presented the August 2021 financials to Council. 
It was moved by Councilmember Pelter, seconded by Councilmember LaLonde, to approve the 
financials for August 2021 as presented. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Councilmembers Clapperton, Fullerton, LaLonde, Mayor Litzner, Councilmember Pelter,     
         Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis and Councilmember Tremble. 
No:  None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 
After some discussion regarding the National Office Product statement charges and the expenditures 
marked as over budget, it was moved by Councilmember Fullerton, seconded by Councilmember 
Tremble, to approve paying the bills as presented.   
 
ACE HARDWARE   821.35  
      



 

AIRGAS USA LLC   159.44  
      AL E TESTER   1,442.40  
      ANDERSON TACKMAN & COMPANY   6,000.00  
      ANDREA INSLEY   118.69  
      ANDREW DIXON   320.00  
      BELONGA EXCAVATING, LLC   3,227.50  
      BLARNEY CASTLE OIL CO   519.99  
      CHARLES J. PALMER, P.C.   1,978.24  
      CHEBOYGAN CEMENT PRODUCTS INC   1,521.50  
      ETNA SUPPLY COMPANY   2,773.24  
      FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3386   23.24  
      GALLS, AN ARAMARK CO   12.99  
      GFL ENVIRONMENTAL USA, INC.   274.04  
GRAINGER INC   184.46  
      HD SUPPLY FACILITIES MAINTENANCE LT   887.97  
      HOLIDAY   230.81  
      HURON VALLEY GUNS LLC   19.53  
      HYDRITE CHEMICAL CO   6,400.80  
      INDIAN TRAILS   452.94  
      J & T SERVICES, LLC   900.00  
      KIMBALL-MIDWEST   310.02  
      KSS ENTERPRISES   846.86  
      LYNN AUTO PARTS   667.75  
      MACKINAC PLUMBING & HEATING CO   33.75  
      MACKINAC SALES   7.31  
      MICHAEL RICHARD LAMB   2,301.00  
      MICHIGAN STATE POLICE   66.00  
      MILLER CONSULTATIONS & ELECTIONS,INC   52.16  
      NATIONAL OFFICE PRODUCTS   7,098.14  
      NCL OF WISCONSIN INC   653.95  
      QUILL CORPORATION   75.96  
      SAULT PRINTING COMPANY    329.31  
      SPARTAN STORES   132.69  
      ST IGNACE AUTOMOTIVE   442.63  
      ST IGNACE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE   150.00  
ST IGNACE POSTMASTER   62.00 
      ST IGNACE TRUE VALUE   1,609.87  
      SYNCB/AMAZON   381.03  
      UP REGION OF LIBRARY COOPERATION, I   583.46  
WESLEY H MAURER JR   476.80  
      
 Grand Total:                                             $44,549.82 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes:  Councilmembers Fullerton, LaLonde, Pelter, Mayor Pro-Tem St. Louis, Councilmembers Tremble 
         and Clapperton.  
No:  Mayor Litzner. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
Public comment was received regarding City properties considered for sale, overbudget items and the 
final two fireworks shows for the season. 
 



 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
City Manager Long informed Council that the City staff is preparing the 2022 Budget and also updated 
them on the code enforcement progress and CIP project discussions. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS – None. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
Mayor Litzner commended the St. Ignace Visitors Bureau, St. Ignace Chamber and Events Committee 
for their work on the successful weekend Truck Show. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
_____________________________                              _________________________________ 
Connie Litzner, Mayor                                                   Andrea Insley, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 
 
  



 

                                

























 DIXON 
ENGINEERING & INSPECTION SERVICES 
FOR THE COATING INDUSTRY 

  
 1104 Third Avenue 
 Lake Odessa, MI 48849 
 Telephone: (616) 374-3221 
 Fax: (616) 374-7116 
  

 
 

Members: Society of Protective Coatings • American Water Works Association 
Consulting Engineers Council 

 

 
September 22, 2021 
 
 
 
Mr. Darcy Long, City Manager 
City of St. Ignace 
396 N. State St. 
St. Ignace, MI 49781 
 
Subject: Inspection Services Proposal for 500,000 Gallon Concrete Reservoir, 300,000 Gallon Steel 
Reservoir, 100,000 Gallon Spheroid and 100,000 Gallon Double Ellipse tanks.  
 
Dear Mr. Long: 
 

Enclosed are maintenance proposals for a drained inspection of the 500,000 gallon concrete reservoir 
and ROV inspections of the 300,000 gallon steel reservoir, 100,000 gallon (Kewadin) spheroid, and 
100,000 Gallon (West Side) Double Ellipse Elevated Tank.  With a drained inspection, the fee is estimated 
because the amount of cleaning required is unknown.   A typical estimate for cleaning time is based on 
our experience with similar sized tank.  The Basis of Payment for an ROV inspection is Lump Sum for 
travel, inspection and report. 
 
Our Proposal/Contract form consists of the Contract Provisions and Schedules A, B, and C.  Schedule A 
includes a detailed Scope of Services for both the Owner and DIXON.  Schedule B includes fees and 
terms of payment.   Schedule C provides billing rates for additional services that may be provided during 
the inspection.  The Proposal/Contract form becomes a Contract when the proposal is accepted and 
signed by the Owner, and then signed by DIXON. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal.  If you have any questions, please feel free to 
contact me at (616) 292-1288 or eric.binkowski@dixonengineering.net. 
 
 
FOR DIXON ENGINEERING, INC., 
 
 
Eric Binkowski 
Project Manager 
 
 
Enclosure

file://192.168.1.26/Clients/Michigan/S/St.%20Ignace/Combined%20Project/Proposal/eric.binkowski@dixonengineering.net


 DIXON 
ENGINEERING & INSPECTION SERVICES 
FOR THE COATING INDUSTRY 

  
 1104 Third Avenue 
 Lake Odessa, MI 48849 
 Telephone: (616) 374-3221 
 Fax: (616) 374-7116 
  

 

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 1 of 13  

 

SHORT FORM OF AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND DIXON 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

100,000 Gallon Spheroid, (Evergreen Shores-Kewadin), #22-49-02-01 
100,000 Gallon Double Ellipse, (West Side), #22-49-02-02 

300,000 Gallon Steel Reservoir, #22-49-02-03 
500,000 Gallon Concrete Reservoir, (Water Plant), #22-49-02-04 

 
THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of _________________ (“Effective Date”) between City of St. 
Ignace, Michigan (“Owner”) and Engineer (“Dixon Engineering, Inc.”).   
 
1.01 SIGNATURES: 
 

Eric Binkowski, Project Manager September 22, 2021 
PROPOSED by DIXON (not a contract until approved by Project Manager or Officer) Proposal Date 

 
   
CONTRACT Approved by Owner Position Date 

 
   
CO SIGNATURE (If Required)  Date 

 
   
CONTRACT APPROVED by DIXON PROJECT MANAGER  Date 

 
Address for OWNER’S receipt of Notices Address for DIXON’S receipt of Notices 
_________________________________ 1104 Third Avenue 
_________________________________ Lake Odessa, MI 48849 
_________________________________  

 
 
1.02 CONTRACT/PROPOSAL: 

A. Signatures acknowledge that this Contract consists of 13 pages. 
 

B. Owner’s Project, of which DIXON’s services under this Agreement are a part, is generally 
identified as follows: 500,000 Gallon Concrete Reservoir, 100,000 Gallon Double Ellipse, 
100,000 Gallon Spheroid, and 500,000 Gallon Reservoir Steel (“Project”). 
 

C. DIXON’s services under this Agreement are generally identified as follows, and further 
definition of Services by both Owner and DIXON are included as  
Maintenance Inspection Services (Dry), ROV, and Float per Schedule A 

 



  

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 2 of 13  

Owner and DIXON further agree as follows: 
 

2.01 BASIC AGREEMENT: 
A. DIXON shall provide or furnish the Services set forth in this Agreement.  Services are delineated for 

both the Owner and DIXON in Schedule A – Scope of Services.   If authorized by Owner, or if 
required because of changes in the Project, DIXON shall furnish services in addition to those set 
forth above (“Additional Services”). 

B. DIXON shall complete its Services within a reasonable period of time. 
C. If, through no fault of DIXON, such periods of time or dates are changed, or the orderly and 

continuous progress of DIXON’s Services is impaired, or DIXON’s Services are delayed or 
suspended, then the time for completion of DIXON’s Services, and the rates and amounts of 
DIXON’s compensation, shall be adjusted equitably. 
 

3.01 PAYMENT PROCEDURES: 
A. Invoices: DIXON will prepare invoices in accordance with its standard invoicing practices and submit 

the invoices to Owner on a monthly basis. Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt.   
Additional financial terms are found in Schedule B. 

B. Payment: As compensation for DIXON providing or furnishing Services and Additional Services, 
Owner shall pay DIXON as set forth in Paragraphs 3.01 (Payment Procedures), 3.02 (Basis of 
Payment), and 3.03 (Additional Services). If Owner disputes an invoice, either as to amount or 
entitlement, then Owner shall promptly advise DIXON in writing of the specific basis for doing so, 
may withhold only that portion so disputed, and must pay the undisputed portion. 
 

3.02 BASIS OF PAYMENT: 
A. Owner shall pay DIXON for services as follows:  
1. Estimated amount of Seventeen Thousand, Three Hundred dollars ($17,300.00).  See Schedule B 

for estimated cost breakdown of services and reimbursable expenses for the various phases of 
work. 

 
3.03 ADDITIONAL SERVICES: For Additional Services, Owner shall pay DIXON an amount equal to the 

cumulative hours charged in providing the Additional Services by each of DIXON’s employees, 
times standard hourly rates for each applicable billing classification; plus reimbursement of 
expenses incurred in connection with providing the Additional Services and DIXON’s consultants’ 
charges, if any. DIXON's standard hourly rates and terms are attached as Schedule C. 

 
4.01 ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Schedule A – Scope of Work of both the Owner and DIXON.   
2. Schedule B – Cost breakdown per phase of Work and Additional Terms of Payments. 
3. Schedule C – DIXON Employee Billable Rates and Terms. 



  

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 3 of 13  

SCHEDULE A 
Maintenance Inspection (Dry) 

500,000 Gallon Concrete Reservoir, (Water Plant), #22-49-02-04 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

 
A. Scope of Services Performed by Owner (Drained): 

1. Provide scheduling for mutually agreeable inspection date. 

2. Provide access to DIXON personnel to all areas scheduled for inspection. 

3. Provide insurance for Owner’s personnel.  They are not covered by DIXON’s insurance. 

4. Drain the water storage tank (hereinafter referred to as tank) prior to the arrival of 
DIXON.  (Arrival time to be mutually agreed upon by the Owner and DIXON.) 

5. Provide for the use of the Inspector a source of water.  This can either be a hydrant or 
hose bib supply.  A community fire truck can be provided if needed.  (Fire truck does not 
reduce time, unless tank is a large reservoir.) 

6. The Owner is not required to provide personnel to climb the tank; however, a hard hat is 
required on this employee and any employee on the ground.  DIXON does carry additional 
safety harnesses which can be used by the Owner’s personnel; however, if the tank 
contains a fall prevention device, that device should be used.  DIXON personnel carry 
their own personal safety equipment for that purpose.  DIXON will assist the Owner’s 
personnel in inspecting the interior of the tank if there is a ladder from the roof manhole, 
the Owner’s personnel may enter.  If DIXON is required to rig the tank using their own 
rope ladder and/or rigged line for descent, the Owner’s personnel will not be allowed 
access. 

7. Perform bacteriological testing after completion of the inspection.  Two (2) consecutive 
samples are recommended at 24-hour intervals per AWWA C-652-19 Chlorination 
Method No. 3 

8. Operate the system without the tank in-service.  This includes operation and monitoring 
of pressure relief valves, if necessary. 

 
 

B. Scope of Services Performed by DIXON (Concrete – Drained): 
1. Clean the interior surfaces of the tank with high pressure water.  Cleaning is necessary for 

the engineer to inspect the condition of the floor slab. 

2. Perform visual inspection of concrete reservoir. 

3. Inspect concrete surfaces for spalling, erosion, or other deterioration. 

4. Inspect concrete for cracking and quantify cracks, if any. 

5. Visually inspect concrete for evidence of corrosion or rebar, quantify exposed rebar, and 
condition, if any.  (Note: Corrosion study of covered rebar will not be performed.) 



  

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 4 of 13  

6. Review all interior steel appurtenances for damage due to corrosion 

7. Review exterior of the exposed foundations. 

8. Inspect any interior and exterior coating conditions and estimate remaining service life. 

9. Review all safety requirements for ladders, cages, etc. 

10. Review all health requirements of the tank, including screening of the vent, overflow 
pipe, and other possible contamination sources.  Notification of failed areas will be 
provided to the Owner on site. 

11. Prepare written report (2 copies) describing conditions observed with recommendations 
for repair.  Report will include budgetary cost estimates for the recommended repairs 
with digital photos. 

12. Chlorinate the tank per AWWA Method No. 3 C-652-19.  Reinstall manhole cover.  This 
item may be relocated to the Scope of Services Performed by Owner, if thus contracted. 



  

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 5 of 13  

SCHEDULE A 
Maintenance Inspection (ROV) 

100,000 Gallon Spheroid, (Evergreen Shores-Kewadin), #22-49-02-01 
100,000 Gallon Double Ellipse, (West Side), #22-49-02-02 

300,000 Gallon Steel Reservoir, #22-49-02-03 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

 
 

A. Scope of Services Performed by Owner (ROV): 
1. Provide scheduling for mutually agreeable inspection date. 

2. Provide access to DIXON personnel to all areas scheduled for inspection. 

3. Provide insurance for Owner’s personnel.  They are not covered by DIXON’s insurance. 

4. Perform chlorine residuals and bacteriological testing after completion of the inspection 

5. Fill the tank to the normal high water operating level and if possible, isolate it from the 
system while the ROV is in the tank.  If it is not possible to isolate the tank, keep inlet or 
outlet flow rates to a minimum.  This is necessary to minimize turbulence an increase the 
chance of clear video being recorded. 

 

B. Scope of Services Performed by DIXON (ROV): 
1. Inspect the tank’s interior coating for remaining intactness and anticipated life.  

Submerged surfaces to be inspected by remotely operated vehicle (ROV).  Review all 
interior girders and appurtenances for possible structural damage from icing or corrosion. 

2. Review all interior surfaces for corrosion and/or damage and qualify damage for repairs.  
All repairs are to be quantified by extrapolation of a measured area.  All quantities are 
estimates (usually high) because corrosion will continue between inspection and repair. 

3. Inspect the exterior coating for remaining intactness and anticipated life. 

4. Review all exterior appurtenances for damage due to corrosion. 

5. Review the exterior of the exposed foundations. 

6. Review all safety requirements for ladders, cages, etc. 

7. Review all health requirements of the tank, including screening of the vent, overflow 
pipe, and other possible contamination sources.  Notification of failed areas will be 
provided to the Owner on site. 

8. Prepare a report documenting all items found and recommendations for repair, including 
budgetary items.  The engineering report is to include:  Conclusions and 
recommendations, base report, digital photographs with descriptions, and an edited 
inspection video on flash drive. 

 



  

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 6 of 13  

C. Scope of Services Performed by DIXON (Float): 300,000 Gallon Reservoir only 
 

1. Use inflatable raft to access and inspect all interior girders and appurtenances for possible 
structural damage from icing or corrosion.  Surfaces in immersion will be extrapolated 
from existing conditions.  Inspection results will be documented in final report described 
in DIXON ROV Scope of Services. 

 
 
 



  

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 7 of 13  

SCHEDULE B 
Maintenance Inspection (ROV) 

100,000 Gallon Spheroid, (Evergreen Shores-Kewadin), #22-49-02-01 
100,000 Gallon Double Ellipse, (West Side), #22-49-02-02 

300,000 Gallon Steel Reservoir, #22-49-02-03 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

 
1. Payment for Items B and C, travel time, and preparation of report as outlined in Schedule A –

Scope of Services Performed by DIXON is a lump sum amount of $9,800.00. 
 

2. All DIXON service invoices which are outstanding more than sixty (60) days from invoice date 
shall be assessed (DIXON’s favor) one percent (1%) per month interest from date thirty days after 
invoice date. 

 
 



  

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 8 of 13  

SCHEDULE B 
Maintenance Inspection (Dry) 

500,000 Gallon Concrete Reservoir, (Water Plant), #22-49-02-04 
St. Ignace, Michigan 

 
3. Payment for cleaning the interior of the tank as described in Schedule A, Item 1, Scope of 

Services Performed by DIXON is $300.00 per hour with an estimate of 5 hours ($1,500.00).  Time 
will not be exceeded without authorization of the Owner.  This is estimated because DIXON 
cannot estimate the amount of sediment or time necessary for removal.  The degree of 
cleanliness (i.e. 95% removal of the sediment, etc.) will be established between DIXON and the 
Owner prior to cleaning of the tank.  DIXON will supply personnel based on the anticipated work 
and time. 
 

4. Payment for Schedule A, Items 2 through 11, travel time, and preparation of report is a lump sum 
amount of $5,950.00. 
 

5. Payment for furnishing and applying the chlorine, Schedule A, Item 12 is estimated at $50.00. 
 

6. All DIXON service invoices which are outstanding more than sixty (60) days from invoice date 
shall be assessed (DIXON’s favor) one percent (1%) per month interest from date thirty days after 
invoice date. 



  

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 9 of 13  

SCHEDULE C 
Michigan 

Employee Billable Rates and Terms 
 

Labor Class Per Hour Overtime Rate 

Principal……………………………………………… .................................$265.00  

Project Manager………...…………………………… .................................$160.00 .................................$240.00 

Engineer……………….……………………………... .................................$165.00 .................................$248.00 

CWI Welding RPR…………………...……………… ................$160.00 – $175.00 ................$240.00 – $263.00 

DIXON Level 3 or NACE certified Level 3 RPR ...… ................$110.00 – $145.00 ................$165.00 – $217.00 

DIXON Level 2 or NACE Level 2 RPR ………….… ................$100.00 – $125.00 ................$150.00 – $188.00 

DIXON Level 1 or NACE Level 1 RPR ………….… ..................$90.00 – $109.00 ................$135.00 – $164.00 

Contract Support Staff……………………………….. ................$115.00 – $140.00 ................$173.00 – $210.00 

  

Expenses Metropolitan Out-State 

Mileage……………………...……………….………. …………..$0.75/mile + tolls ………………….$0.65/mile 

Lodging………………………………………...…….. …………..$148.00 per diem …………..$138.00 per diem 

Meals………………………………………..………... ……………$48.00 per diem ……………$41.00 per diem 

   

FEES EFFECTIVE THROUGH: December 31, 2021      (Revised: 8/6/2020) 

 



  

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 10 of 13  

Owner and DIXON further agree as follows: 
 

5.01 TERMINATION: 
A. The obligation to continue performance under this Agreement may be terminated: 

1. For cause, 
a. By either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other 

party to perform in accordance with the Agreement’s terms through no fault of the 
terminating party. Failure to pay DIXON for its services is a substantial failure to perform 
and a basis for termination. 

b. By DIXON: 
1) upon seven days written notice if Owner demands that DIXON furnish or perform 

services contrary to DIXON’s responsibilities as a licensed professional; or  
2) upon seven days written notice if the DIXON’s Services are delayed for more than 90 

days for reasons beyond DIXON’s control, or as the result of the presence at the Site of 
undisclosed Constituents of Concern, as set forth in Paragraph 7.01.I. 

c. DIXON shall have no liability to Owner on account of a termination for cause by DIXON.  
d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate as a result of a 

substantial failure under Paragraph 5.01.A.1.a if the party receiving such notice begins, 
within seven days of receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform and 
proceeds diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt of notice; 
provided, however, that if and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be reasonably 
cured within such 30 day period, and if such party has diligently attempted to cure the 
same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the same, then the cure period provided 
for herein shall extend up to, but in no case more than, 60 days after the date of receipt of 
the notice. 

2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon DIXON's receipt of written notice from Owner. 
B. In the event of any termination under Paragraph 5.01, DIXON will be entitled to invoice Owner and 

to receive full payment for all Services and Additional Services performed or furnished in 
accordance with this Agreement, plus reimbursement of expenses incurred through the effective 
date of termination in connection with providing the Services and Additional Services 

C. Effective Date of Termination:  The terminating party under Paragraph 5.01.A.1 may set the 
effective date of termination at a time up to 30 days later than otherwise provided to allow DIXON 
to demobilize personnel and equipment from the Site, to complete tasks whose value would 
otherwise be lost, to prepare notes as to the status of completed and uncompleted tasks, and to 
assemble Project materials in orderly files.  Costs associated with any further work that is needed 
to prevent adverse impact on the project are to be negotiated and considered Additional Services. 
 

6.01 SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, AND BENEFICIARIES: 
A. Owner and DIXON are hereby bound and the successors, executors, administrators, and legal 

representatives of Owner and DIXON (and to the extent permitted by Paragraph 6.01.B the assigns 
of Owner and DIXON) are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the 
successors, executors, administrators, and legal representatives (and said assigns) of such other 
party, in respect of all covenants, agreements, and obligations of this Agreement. 

B. Neither Owner nor DIXON may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest in this 
Agreement without the written consent of the other party, except to the extent that any 



  

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 11 of 13  

assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated by law. Unless specifically stated to the contrary in 
any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from 
any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 

C. Unless expressly provided otherwise, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, 
impose, or give rise to any duty owed by Owner or DIXON to any Constructor, other third-party 
individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee of any of them. All duties and responsibilities 
undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of Owner and 
DIXON and not for the benefit of any other party. 
 

7.01 GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
A. The standard of care for all professional related services performed or furnished by DIXON under 

this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession 
practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. DIXON makes no 
warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with any services 
performed or furnished by DIXON. Subject to the foregoing standard of care, DIXON and its 
consultants may use or rely upon design elements and information ordinarily or customarily 
furnished by others, including, but not limited to, specialty contractors, manufacturers, suppliers, 
and the publishers of technical standards.  

B. DIXON shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any Constructor’s 
work, nor shall DIXON have authority over or be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, or the safety 
precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety at the Project site, nor for any 
failure of a Constructor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to such Constructor’s 
furnishing and performing of its work. DIXON shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of 
any Constructor. 

C. DIXON neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any 
Constructor’s failure to furnish and perform its work without regard to DIXON’s relation to that 
Work. 

D. DIXON’s opinions (if any) of probable construction cost are to be made on the basis of DIXON’s 
experience, qualifications, and general familiarity with the construction industry. However, 
because DIXON has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished 
by others, or over contractors’ methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or 
market conditions, DIXON cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual 
construction cost will not vary from opinions of probable construction cost prepared by DIXON. If 
Owner requires greater assurance as to probable construction cost, then Owner agrees to obtain 
an independent cost estimate. 

E. DIXON shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the construction contract 
requirements, or any application, interpretation, clarification, or modification of the construction 
contract documents other than those made by DIXON or its consultants. 

F. All documents prepared or furnished by DIXON are instruments of service, and DIXON retains an 
ownership and property interest (including the copyright and the right of reuse) in such 
documents, whether or not the Project is completed. Owner shall have a limited license to use the 
documents on the Project, extensions of the Project, and for related uses of the Owner, subject to 
receipt by DIXON of full payment due and owing for all Services and Additional Services relating to 
preparation of the documents and subject to the following limitations: 



  

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 12 of 13  

1. Owner acknowledges that such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for 
use on the Project unless completed by DIXON, or for use or reuse by Owner or others on 
extensions of the Project, on any other project, or for any other use or purpose, without 
written verification or adaptation by DIXON; 

2. any such use or reuse, or any modification of the documents, without written verification, 
completion, or adaptation by DIXON, as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, will be 
at Owner’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to DIXON or to its officers, directors, 
members, partners, agents, employees, and consultants; 

3. Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless DIXON and its officers, directors, members, partners, 
agents, employees, and consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including 
attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from any use, reuse, or modification of the 
documents without written verification, completion, or adaptation by DIXON; and such limited 
license to Owner shall not create any rights in third parties. 

G. Owner and DIXON may transmit, and shall accept, Project-related correspondence, documents, 
text, data, drawings, information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either 
directly, or through access to a secure Project website, in accordance with a mutually agreeable 
protocol. 

H. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner and DIXON (1) waive against each other, and the 
other’s employees, officers, directors, members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any 
and all claims for or entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising 
out of, resulting from, or in any way related to this Agreement or the Project, and (2) agree that 
DIXON’s total liability to Owner under this Agreement shall be limited to $100,000 or the total 
amount of compensation received by DIXON, whichever is greater.  
1. Limitation of Liability:  DIXON and Owner agree that they shall each be responsible for their 

own negligence and that neither party shall, under any circumstances, be responsible for the 
negligent acts or omissions of the other party. 

2. Percentage Share of Negligence: To the fullest extent permitted by law, a party’s total liability 
to the other party and anyone claiming by, through, or under  the other party for any  cost, 
loss, or damages caused in part by the negligence of  the party and in part by the negligence of  
the other party or any other negligent entity or individual, shall not exceed the percentage 
share that the party’s negligence bears to the total negligence of Owner, and all other negligent 
entities and individuals. 

I. The parties acknowledge that DIXON’s Services do not include any services related to unknown or 
undisclosed Constituents of Concern.  If DIXON or any other party encounters, uncovers, or reveals 
an unknown or undisclosed Constituent of Concern, then DIXON may, at its option and without 
liability for consequential or any other damages, suspend performance of Services on the portion 
of the Project affected thereby until such portion of the Project is no longer affected, or terminate 
this Agreement for cause if it is not practical to continue providing Services. 
1. Constituents of Concern normally associated with coating projects can be hidden or occur as a 

result of the Work.  These include metals and organic solvents.  These material still are 
considered as Constituents of Concern only they are known or anticipated.  But these 
constituents of concern, including lead, chrome, cadmium, mercury, and coating solvents shall 
not be a trigger for project termination by either DIXON or Owner. 

J. Owner and DIXON agree to negotiate each dispute between them in good faith during the 30 days 
after notice of dispute. If Owner/DIXON negotiations are unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, 



  

EJCDC® E-520, 2015 Edition of Short Form of Agreement Between Owner and DIXON for Professional Services.   DIXON is required to notify 
all parties that under license to EJCDC DIXON has made minor modifications, and that this is therefore not an EJCDC document.  
 

Page 13 of 13  

then the dispute shall be negotiated by a third party agreeable to both parties and the neutral 
negotiator’s determination shall be legally binding on both parties. 

K. This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located. 
L. DIXON’s Services and Additional Services do not include: (1) serving as a “municipal advisor” for 

purposes of the registration requirements of Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform 
and Consumer Protection Act (2010) or the municipal advisor registration rules issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission; (2) advising Owner, or any municipal entity or other person 
or entity, regarding municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal securities, including 
advice with respect to the structure, timing, terms, or other similar matters concerning such 
products or issuances; (3) providing surety bonding or insurance-related advice, recommendations, 
counseling, or research, or enforcement of construction insurance or surety bonding requirements; 
or (4) providing legal advice or representation. 
 

8.01 TOTAL AGREEMENT: 
A. This Agreement (including any expressly incorporated attachments), constitutes the entire 

agreement between Owner and DIXON and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings. 
This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly executed 
written instrument. 
 

9.01 DEFINITIONS: 
A. Constructor – Any person or entity (not including the DIXON, its employees, agents, 

representatives, and consultants), performing or supporting construction activities relating to the 
Project, including but not limited to contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, Owner’s work forces, 
utility companies, construction managers, testing firms, shippers, and truckers, and the employees, 
agents, and representatives of any or all of them. 

B. Constituent of Concern – Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive material, polychlorinated biphenyls 
(PCBs), hazardous waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material of any nature 
whatsoever that is or becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to (a) the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. (“CERCLA”); (b) 
the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §§5101 et seq.; (c) the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6901 et seq. (“RCRA”); (d) the Toxic Substances Control 
Act, 15 U.S.C. §§2601 et seq.; (e) the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq.; (f) the Clean Air 
Act, 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.; or (g) any other federal, State, or local statute, law, rule, regulation, 
ordinance, resolution, code, order, or decree regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or 
standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, substance, or material. 

 



 

PROCLAMATION 

 
 

 WHEREAS, Brian Peterson, has been an employee of the City of St. Ignace 

from 1991 to 2021; and  
 

 WHEREAS, in his 30 years of employment, Brian held several positions as a 

Heavy Equipment Operator, Water Line Maintenance, Wastewater Plant Operator, 
Chief Operator of Water and Wastewater and will retire as the Certified Operator in 
Charge; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Brian has continued his education by achieving L1 and L2 

certifications for wastewater, and the water certifications S3, S4, F2, F3 and F-4; and  
 

WHEREAS, Brian received recognition for completing programs through the 

Michigan Rural Water Association; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Brian has assisted in training new employees in the Water and 

Wastewater Plants’ operations and procedures while keeping things running 
smoothly and safely concerning all public health regulations; and 
 

 THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, that the City of St. Ignace and its 

employees recognize Brian Peterson for his selfless dedication for working long 
hours and many Holidays. 
 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED, that the City of St. Ignace 

honor Brian Peterson, on this 4th Day of October, 2021, for his dedicated service to 
the City of St. Ignace and wish him well upon his retirement. 
 
 

                CITY OF ST. IGNACE 

 
 
By:  ____________________________                                             Date:   October 4, 2021 
                  Connie Litzner, Mayor                  


















	100,000 Gallon Spheroid, (Evergreen Shores-Kewadin), #22-49-02-01
	2.01 BASIC AGREEMENT:
	3.01 PAYMENT PROCEDURES:
	1. Estimated amount of Seventeen Thousand, Three Hundred dollars ($17,300.00).  See Schedule B for estimated cost breakdown of services and reimbursable expenses for the various phases of work.
	1. Schedule A – Scope of Work of both the Owner and DIXON.
	2. Schedule B – Cost breakdown per phase of Work and Additional Terms of Payments.
	3. Schedule C – DIXON Employee Billable Rates and Terms.

	SCHEDULE A
	Maintenance Inspection (Dry)
	500,000 Gallon Concrete Reservoir, (Water Plant), #22-49-02-04
	St. Ignace, Michigan
	A. Scope of Services Performed by Owner (Drained):
	B. Scope of Services Performed by DIXON (Concrete – Drained):
	SCHEDULE A
	Maintenance Inspection (ROV)
	100,000 Gallon Spheroid, (Evergreen Shores-Kewadin), #22-49-02-01
	St. Ignace, Michigan
	A. Scope of Services Performed by Owner (ROV):
	B. Scope of Services Performed by DIXON (ROV):
	C. Scope of Services Performed by DIXON (Float): 300,000 Gallon Reservoir only
	Maintenance Inspection (ROV)
	100,000 Gallon Spheroid, (Evergreen Shores-Kewadin), #22-49-02-01
	100,000 Gallon Double Ellipse, (West Side), #22-49-02-02
	St. Ignace, Michigan
	Maintenance Inspection (Dry)
	500,000 Gallon Concrete Reservoir, (Water Plant), #22-49-02-04
	St. Ignace, Michigan
	5.01 TERMINATION:
	1. For cause,
	a. By either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the Agreement’s terms through no fault of the terminating party. Failure to pay DIXON for its services is a substantial...
	b. By DIXON:
	c. DIXON shall have no liability to Owner on account of a termination for cause by DIXON.
	d. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate as a result of a substantial failure under Paragraph 5.01.A.1.a if the party receiving such notice begins, within seven days of receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial fail...

	2. For convenience, by Owner effective upon DIXON's receipt of written notice from Owner.

	6.01 SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, AND BENEFICIARIES:
	7.01 GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS:
	1. Owner acknowledges that such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for use on the Project unless completed by DIXON, or for use or reuse by Owner or others on extensions of the Project, on any other project, or for any other use ...
	2. any such use or reuse, or any modification of the documents, without written verification, completion, or adaptation by DIXON, as appropriate for the specific purpose intended, will be at Owner’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to...
	3. Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless DIXON and its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and consultants from all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from any use, re...
	1. Limitation of Liability:  DIXON and Owner agree that they shall each be responsible for their own negligence and that neither party shall, under any circumstances, be responsible for the negligent acts or omissions of the other party.
	2. Percentage Share of Negligence: To the fullest extent permitted by law, a party’s total liability to the other party and anyone claiming by, through, or under  the other party for any  cost, loss, or damages caused in part by the negligence of  the...
	1. Constituents of Concern normally associated with coating projects can be hidden or occur as a result of the Work.  These include metals and organic solvents.  These material still are considered as Constituents of Concern only they are known or ant...

	8.01 TOTAL AGREEMENT:

